CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting held on 16 October 2024

PRESENT: Councillor Douglas Massie Fowlie (Chair)

Councillor Sonia Williams (Vice-Chair)

Councillors Geraint ap Ifan Bebb, R LI Jones, Llio Angharad Owen, Keith Roberts, Alwen Pennant Watkin, Arfon Wyn, Sonia Williams and

leuan Williams

Portfolio Members

Councillors Alun Roberts (Portfolio Member for Adult Services' and Community Safety), Neville Evans (Portfolio Member for Leisure,

Tourism and Maritime), Dafydd Roberts (Portfolio Member for Education

and the Welsh Language)

IN ATTENDANCE: Chief Executive

> Head of Adults' Services (AO) Head of Democracy (DS) Scrutiny Manager (AD) Scrutiny Officer (EA) Webcasting Officer (FT)

ALSO PRESENT: Siobhan Gothorp (North Wales Partnership Board)

> Councillors Gary Pritchard (Leader and Portfolio Member for Economic Development), Nicola Roberts (Portfolio Member for Planning, Public Protection and Climate Change), Robin Williams (Deputy Leader and

Portfolio Member for Finance and Housing).

APOLOGIES: Councillors Aled Morris Jones, Councillor Jackie Lewis.

Gillian Thompson, Wenda Owen and John Tierney (Co-opted Members);

Rhys H. Hughes (Deputy Chief Executive), Fon Roberts (Director of

Social Services and Children's Services).

1 **ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRPERSON**

It was RESOLVED that Councillor Sonia Williams be elected as Vice-Chairperson of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee for the remainder of the 2024/2025 civic year.

2 **DECLARATION OF INTEREST**

None received.

3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the previous meeting of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee held on 17 September, 2024 were presented and confirmed as correct.

4 NORTH WALES REGIONAL PARTNERSHIP BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24

The report of the Director of Social Services incorporating the North Wales Regional Partnership Board Annual Report 2023/24 was presented for the Committee's consideration.

The Portfolio Member for Adult Services' and Community Safety introduced this item which is a statutory report each Regional Partnership Board must prepare, publish and present annually to Welsh Government, in line with Section 9 of the Social Services and Welfare Act. The purpose of the report is to provide information for Partners about the Regional Partnership Board and its activities during 2023/24. The Isle of Anglesey County Council as a Local Authority is represented on the Board along with Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board, North Wales Police and a number of other Organisations, Agencies and members of the third sector. The key aims of the Board are:

- collaborate in partnership to integrate across workstreams
- improve, care and assist in ensuring people have a better voice with regards to the health and welfare of residents
- provide care that concentrates on the individual
- make more effective use of resources, skills and expertise given pressures experienced by statutory frontline services across the

The Portfolio Member described how working in partnership across Social Services and partners will assist to developing resilient communities and services for individuals who need care and support.

Siobhan Gothorp, Regional Business Manager of North Wales Regional Partnership Board Support Team gave the Committee an overview of the North Wales Regional Partnership Board Annual Report 2023/24:

- Key achievements of the Board included Delivery of Regional Integration Fund (RIF) programme worth £32.8 million across North Wales with 141 schemes/ services
- Development of the 10-year Regional Strategic Capital Plan which includes 31 Capital Schemes
- Regional Memory Support Pathway (MSP) which provides a seamless service across Partners working collaboratively to provide advice and support on preassessment and post diagnostic concerns to ensure an equitable pathway
- The establishment of Dementia Centres across all 6 counties through a grant fund worth £390,000 across a 3-year period. 1 permanent Dementia Centre is located on Anglesey in the Hwb Cymunedol Glanhwfa Community Hub, Llangefni.
- The Establishment of a North Wales Dementia Friendly Communities (DFC)
 accreditation and recognition scheme was developed in January 2024 to replace
 the National Dementia Friendly Scheme previously provided by the Alzheimer's
 Society. Subsequently, the Board has successfully re-accredited existing Dementia
 friendly communities and assisted new and emerging centres with their
 accreditation.
- The Children's Regional Partnership Board (CRPB) was another key achievement, implemented in January 2024 and underpinned by a revised governance structure, focusing on priorities across North Wales to improve the lives of children with complex Neurodiverse conditions such as Autism and ADHD who are on long waiting lists for assessment and diagnosis with the Local Health Board. Ynys Môn are focusing specifically on early intervention and prevention through the roll out of a multi-disciplinary team approach based around 5 Secondary and 5 Primary Schools.

- A Regional Learning Disabilities Supported Employment strategy has also been developed as a framework to support people and organisations to ensure people with learning disabilities are able to live an independent life. This has included a pilot project to access (established in 2023).
- Finally, towards the end of 2023, a Good News Group was established to coordinate communication of the Regional Partnership Board's work via the Communication Officers of each partner organisation.

The presentation was concluded with the key priorities for the Regional Development Board during 2024/25

- The continuation to deliver the RIF programme and improve outcomes and evaluation framework
- Refresh of the 10-year Regional Strategic Capital Plan
- Development of Children's Regional Partnership Board priorities
- Regional LD Supported Employment model to access paid employment.
- The continuation to progress their Autism Code of Practice and Neurodivergence Improvement Plan along with the momentum of the Mwy Na Geiriau scheme.
- Support the implementation of new and existing Safeguarding legislation
- Develop a North Wales approach to using digital, data and technology to enable seamless, integrated services.

Ms Gothorp provided the Committee with a high-level summary of initiatives funded by the Regional Partnership Board on the Isle of Anglesey, which represents 10.35% of the total fund (£1.76m during 2023/24) which was used to support 19 services and schemes.

- Support for unpaid carers (£206k)
- Social value services (£505k)
- Capital for small group homes (£655k)
- Capital for Amlwch Wellbeing Hub (£49k)
- Capital for Dementia friendly care home (£115k)
- Capital feasibility South Ynys Môn extra care (£50k) and development of outline business case
- Business case for funding Canolfan Glanhwfa (£777k)

The Committee expressed its appreciation of the report and arising from the information provided, the following points of discussion were raised by Members:-

- Questions were raised regarding the effectiveness of outcomes for each intervention
 and project supported by the Board and the degree to which individuals receive a better
 quality of life as a result of these interventions. Members also questioned the
 percentage of spend that goes towards direct outcomes for individuals and the
 percentage allocated to spend on staffing and back-office support, and the degree to
 which it is possible to communicate this via a Dashboard on the Board's website. In
 response it was confirmed that the RPB Support team provide a detailed report on each
 funding stream on a quarterly basis, with a detailed evaluation provided annually within
 each Region, to provide assurance.
- The Committee asked about arrangements in place for the Portfolio Member to report back to the Council following key meetings with the Board and other Local Authorities in order to provide an update on key issues. The Portfolio Member for Adult Services' and Community Safety responded to confirm that arrangements are in place to feed back locally to the Service. The Chief Executive proposed an action with the Head of Democratic Services to consider options for the development of a manageable, effective reporting system; any options to be considered at a future meeting of the Group Leaders.

- To what extent has the Board achieved its key priorities for 2023/24. The Portfolio
 Holder responded to confirm that the Board are satisfied with their achievements during
 2023/24 in order to provide support to ensure a difference is made to the lives of
 individuals. The Dementia Centre in hwb Glan Hwfa hub and the Small Group Homes
 scheme were cited as examples of achievements having had a local impact during
 2023/24.
- A question was raised regarding accessibility for wheelchair users at the Hwb
 Cymunedol Glanhwfa Community Hub Dementia Centre. The Head of Adult Services
 responded to confirm the Service recognises the need for improvement at the Centre
 which are currently being addressed.
- Questions were raised regarding the need to promote and share the success of the Board and how this may be achieved. The board referred to the establishment of the Good News Story Group which will steer this important area of work per quarter. It was noted that the Board will work collaboratively with the Local Authorities Communication Teams to ensure events and information are widely shared and publicised across the Region.
- How can the Partnership Board contribute towards alleviating some of the ongoing challenges and pressures on frontline Health and Social Care Services given there is no indication the situation will improve significantly to the medium term. In response, Ms Gothorp described the role of the Board in assisting Local Authorities to share good practice across the region through collective discussion in an attempt to reduce duplication and encourage innovation. The Board also continues to promote and champion North Wales for funding opportunities.

Having reviewed the North Wales Regional Partnership Board Annual Report 2023/24 and having noted the responses of Officers to the points of discussion raised it was RESOLVED-

- That the Committee confirms it has read, understood and taken into account the work that is required to be undertaken by the Regional Partnership Board.
- That the Committee notes the work and progress in 2023/24 on the work areas that are being taken forward through the North Wales Regional Partnership Board

Additional actions-

- The statutory Director of Social Services with the Head of Adult Services invite
 the North Wales Regional Partnership Board to create a high level dashboard
 summarising the percentage of funding spent on direct outcomes for users / the
 percentage of expenditure on administration per project. The dashboard to be
 uploaded on the Board's website.
- The Chief Executive with the Head of Democratic Services to consider the
 propriety of developing a process for our representatives on the Regional
 Partnership Board to report back to the Council at a high level on outcomes /
 developments of the Board. Invite the Group Leaders to consider the proposal.

5 CARE INSPECTORATE WALES:LOCAL AUTHORITY IMPROVEMENT CHECK LETTER - ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL ADULT SERVICES

The Care Inspectorate Wales Improvement Check Letter for Adult Services and the Post-Inspection Action Plan by the Director of Social Services and the Head of Adult Services were presented for the Committee's consideration.

The Portfolio Member for Adult Services' and Community Safety introduced this item and referred to attendance by Care Inspectorate Wales at a recent meeting of the Social Services Scrutiny Panel which gave Members the opportunity to ask key scrutiny questions. He provided a brief background to the inspection of Adult Services in June 2024 which highlighted strengths, good practice along with areas for improvement. The inspection work focused on the four principles underpinning the Social Services and Wellbeing Wales Act 2014 together with progress made since the previous inspection completed in October 2022.

The Head of Adult Services confirmed the report was a positive one and demonstrates progress made since the previous inspection against the 11 areas identified for improvement. Five areas have now been fully implemented and the remaining 6 requiring further progress with no specific areas of risk identified by CIW. The Report compares favourably against other Local Authorities in Wales. The improvement plan includes key actions covering the 11 improvement areas identified by Care Inspectorate Wales.

The Chief Executive congratulated the Service on the positive report amid the pressures and challenges faced when providing a service on an Island where the population is ageing.

The Committee expressed its appreciation of the report. In considering the report, the Committee discussed the following key issues in particular:-

- The survey results evidenced that 89% of people felt listened to 'at all times' or 'most of the time' and wanted to know the degree to which the Service have an understanding of why the remaining 11% of people did not feel listened to and what is being done to resolve this. The Head of Adult Services felt the survey results were positive given the challenging nature of the Service and noted the importance of an open and honest ongoing dialogue with Service users from the outset.
- A question was raised about how the Service will continue to improve given the
 financial challenges we face and availability of Services to meet assessed need and
 in particular short term or respite care. The Head of Adult Services acknowledged
 this ongoing challenge, with the Service continuing to endeavour to provide
 effective care services as close to people's local community as possible. He
 described an ongoing scenario of increased demand for care services within a
 context of diminishing funding.
- What plans are in place to monitor progress against the areas that need
 addressing. The Head of Adult Services responded by recognising the importance
 of regularly monitoring the work programme to ensure progress within the published
 timescales. The work programme is currently being monitored on a monthly basis
 and is assessing how best to use good practice to learn, share and improve.
- The Committee questioned its role in monitoring the work programme and the degree to which any monitoring reports should include examples of how individual actions in the work programme have been implemented. The Chief Executive recommended that a formal update be provided to the Committee in 6 months.
- Members also enquired about the future of the national software system available to support case management, recording and the monitoring of Social Services provision. The Chief Executive advised the Committee of the proposed implementation of a new national software system "Connect in Care" which will replace the current system, working across Health and Social Services. It was proposed that the matter be included for discussion at the Members' Monthly Briefing Session in December, 2024

The Portfolio Member recognised the importance of the Elected Members' role in challenging the Service whilst recognising the good work provided by Officers within the Service.

Having reviewed the report and action plan of the Director of Social Services and the Head of Adult Services and having noted the responses of Officers to the points of discussion raised it was RESOLVED-

- That the Committee have considered the Care Inspectorate Wales Improvement checklist letter in relation to Anglesey County Council's Adult Services, published on the 22nd August 2024.
- That the Committee have offered comment on the report and confirmed that the attached development plan, drafted by the Service reflects the key areas for improvement and how best to assist in supporting the future work of the Service.

Additional actions-

Officers to provide a formal report to the Committee in 6 months on progress made in implementing the post inspection work programme

 The proposed implementation of the new national software system "Connect in Care" to be included for discussion at the Members' Monthly Briefing Session in December 2024

6 COMMITTEE NOMINATIONS - FINANCE AND EDUCATION SCRUTINY PANELS

Submitted – a report by the Scrutiny Manager in respect of the above.

It was RESOLVED to appoint Councillor Keith Roberts to serve on the Finance Scrutiny Panel.

It was RESOLVED to appoint Councillor leuan Williams to serve on the Education Scrutiny Panel.

7 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The report of the Scrutiny Manager incorporating the Committee's Forward Work Programme to April, 2025 was presented for consideration.

It was RESOLVED -

- To agree the current version of the Forward Work Programme for 2024/25.
- To note the progress thus far in implementing the Forward Work Programme.

COUNCILLOR DOUGLAS FOWLIE CHAIR